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We have audited the financial statements of each major enterprise fund of the Southeast Service Cooperative, Rochester,
Minnesota (the Cooperative) for the year ended June 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 13, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with the information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 31, 2017.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Our Responsibility under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America and Government
Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance
As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express opinions about
whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because an audit is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all
transactions, there is a risk that material errors, fraud, or illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us.
Also, our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered the internal control over financial reporting
of the Cooperative. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide
any assurance concerning such internal control. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the
audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters.
Significant Audit Findings
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Cooperative's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Cooperative’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cooperative’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements, and other matters noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit. Also in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, we examined, on a test basis, evidence about the Cooperative’s
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the “U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Compliance Supplement” applicable to each of its major federal programs for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
Cooperative’s compliance with those requirements and for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on the Cooperative’s compliance with those requirements. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, Government Auditing Standards or Minnesota statutes.
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by the Cooperative are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered
into by the Cooperative during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were depreciation expense, RSR and IBNR balances and pension liabilities at year end.
•
•
•

Management’s estimate of capital asset basis is based on estimated historical cost of the capital assets and
depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.
Management’s estimate of RSR and IBNR balances is based on estimated actuarial calculations provided by
BCBSM Inc.
Management’s estimate of its pension liability is based on several factors including, but not limited to, anticipated
investment return rate, retirement age for active employees, life expectancy, salary increases, and form of annuity
payment upon retirement.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement disclosures are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such
misstatements. In addition, the misstatement detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management was
not material to its opinion unit or the financial statements taken as a whole.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter
dated November 13, 2017.
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Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not
resolved to our satisfaction concerning a financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course
of our audit.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar
to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to
the Cooperative’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant
has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management each year prior to retention as the Cooperative’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.
Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) (Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the Schedules of Employer’s Share of the Net Pension Liability and the Schedules of Employer’s Contributions),
which is information that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the RSI.
We were engaged to report on the supplementary information (combining and individual fund schedules and table and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards), which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to
this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods
of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves.
We were not engaged to report on the introductory section, which accompany the financial statements but is not RSI. We
did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been issued and may have an impact
on future Cooperative financial statements: (1)
GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension
Summary
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments
for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.
This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial
reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.
This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and
Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans
Other than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.
The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of
state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this
Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount
projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee
service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are
addressed.
In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with payables to defined
benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria and for employers whose
employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This Statement also addresses certain circumstances in which a
nonemployer entity provides financial support for OPEB of employees of another entity.
In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon whether the OPEB plans
through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that meet the following criteria:
•

Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and earnings on those
contributions are irrevocable.

•

OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the benefit terms.

•

OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing entities, the
OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members.

Effective Date
This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged.
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting
The requirements of this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in employer and governmental
nonemployer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its value for assessing accountability and interperiod
equity by requiring recognition of the entire OPEB liability and a more comprehensive measure of OPEB expense.
Decision-usefulness and accountability also will be enhanced through new note disclosures and required supplementary
information, as follows:
•

More robust disclosures of assumptions will allow for better informed assessments of the reasonableness of
OPEB measurements.

•

Explanations of how and why the OPEB liability changed from year to year will improve
transparency.

•

The summary OPEB liability information, including ratios, will offer an indication of the extent to
which the total OPEB liability is covered by resources held by the OPEB plan, if any.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued)
•

For employers that provide benefits through OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the
specified criteria, the contribution schedules will provide measures to evaluate decisions related to contributions.

The consistency, comparability, and transparency of the information reported by employers and governmental
nonemployer contributing entities about OPEB transactions will be improved by requiring:
•

The use of a discount rate that considers the availability of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position associated with
the OPEB of current active and inactive employees and the investment horizon of those resources, rather than
utilizing only the long-term expected rate of return regardless of whether the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is
projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and is expected to be invested using a strategy to
achieve that return.

•

A single method of attributing the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments to periods of employee
service, rather than allowing a choice among six methods with additional variations.

•

Immediate recognition in OPEB expense, rather than a choice of recognition periods, of the effects of changes of
benefit terms.

•

Recognition of OPEB expense that incorporates deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB over a defined, closed period, rather than a choice between an open or closed period.

GASB Statement No. 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements
Summary
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements
by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the
agreement. Split-interest agreements are a type of giving agreement used by donors to provide resources to two or more
beneficiaries, including governments. Split-interest agreements can be created through trusts-or other legally enforceable
agreements with characteristics that are equivalent to split-interest agreements-in which a donor transfers resources to an
intermediary to hold and administer for the benefit of a government and at least one other beneficiary. Examples of these
types of agreements include charitable lead trusts, charitable remainder trusts, and life-interests in real estate.
This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement
recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. Furthermore, this
Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest
agreements that are administered by a third party, if the government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial
interests. This Statement requires that a government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the
reporting period.
Effective Date
The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2016,
and should be applied retroactively. Earlier application is encouraged.
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting
This Statement enhances the comparability of financial statements by providing accounting and financial reporting
guidance for irrevocable split-interest agreements in which a government is a beneficiary. This Statement also enhances
the decision-usefulness of general purpose external financial reports, and their value for assessing accountability, by
more clearly identifying the resources that are available for the government to carry out its mission.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations
Summary
This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a
legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability
based on the guidance in this Statement.
This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding
deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred
and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability is incurred should be based on the occurrence of
external laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgments, together with the occurrence of an internal event that obligates a
government to perform asset retirement activities. Laws and regulations may require governments to take specific actions
to retire certain tangible capital assets at the end of the useful lives of those capital assets, such as decommissioning
nuclear reactors and dismantling and removing sewage treatment plants. Other obligations to retire tangible capital assets
may arise from contracts or court judgments. Internal obligating events include the occurrence of contamination, placing
into operation a tangible capital asset that is required to be retired, abandoning a tangible capital asset before it is placed
into operation, or acquiring a tangible capital asset that has an existing ARO.
This Statement requires the measurement of an ARO to be based on the best estimate of the current value of outlays
expected to be incurred. The best estimate should include probability weighting of all potential outcomes, when such
information is available or can be obtained at reasonable cost. If probability weighting is not feasible at reasonable cost,
the most likely amount should be used. This Statement requires that a deferred outflow of resources associated with an
ARO be measured at the amount of the corresponding liability upon initial measurement.
This Statement requires the current value of a government's AROs to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or
deflation at least annually. In addition, it requires a government to evaluate all relevant factors at least annually to
determine whether the effects of one or more of the factors are expected to significantly change the estimated asset
retirement outlays. A government should remeasure an ARO only when the result of the evaluation indicates there is a
significant change in the estimated outlays. The deferred outflows of resources should be reduced and recognized as
outflows of resources (for example, as an expense) in a systematic and rational manner over the estimated useful life of
the tangible capital asset.
A government may have a minority share (less than 50 percent) of ownership interest in a jointly owned tangible capital
asset in which a nongovernmental entity is the majority owner and reports its ARO in accordance with the guidance of
another recognized accounting standards setter. Additionally, a government may have a minority share of ownership
interest in a jointly owned tangible capital asset in which no joint owner has a majority ownership, and a nongovernmental
joint owner that has operational responsibility for the jointly owned tangible capital asset reports the associated ARO in
accordance with the guidance of another recognized accounting standards setter. In both situations, the government's
minority share of an ARO should be reported using the measurement produced by the nongovernmental majority owner or
the nongovernmental minority owner that has operational responsibility, without adjustment to conform to the liability
measurement and recognition requirements of this Statement.
In some cases, governments are legally required to provide funding or other financial assurance for their performance of
asset retirement activities. This Statement requires disclosure of how those funding and assurance requirements are
being met by a government, as well as the amount of any assets restricted for payment of the government's AROs, if not
separately displayed in the financial statements.
This Statement also requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government's AROs, the methods and
assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible
capital assets. If an ARO (or portions thereof) has been incurred by a government but is not yet recognized because it is
not reasonably estimable, the government is required to disclose that fact and the reasons therefor. This Statement
requires similar disclosures for a government's minority shares of AROs.
Effective Date
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Earlier application is encouraged.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued)
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting
This Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by establishing uniform criteria for
governments to recognize and measure certain AROs, including obligations that may not have been previously reported.
This Statement also will enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by
requiring disclosures related to those AROs.
GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities
Summary
The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the
criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.
An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. Governments with
activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary
net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type activity that normally expects to hold
custodial assets for three months or less.
This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee
benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds
generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.
A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements of a primary government, should
combine its information with its component units that are fiduciary component units and aggregate that combined
information with the primary government’s fiduciary funds.
This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has
occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a government to disburse
fiduciary resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or
condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets.
Effective Date
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier
application is encouraged.
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting
The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria for
identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type
activities should report their fiduciary activities. Greater consistency and comparability enhances the value provided by the
information reported in financial statements for assessing government accountability and stewardship.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 85 - Omnibus 2017
Summary
The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending
component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other
postemployment benefits [OPEB]). Specifically, this Statement addresses the following topics:
•

Blending a component unit in circumstances in which the primary government is a business-type activity that
reports in a single column for financial statement presentation

•

Reporting amounts previously reported as goodwill and “negative” goodwill

•

Classifying real estate held by insurance entities

•

Measuring certain money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized
cost

•

Timing of the measurement of pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures recognized in financial statements
prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus

•

Recognizing on-behalf payments for pensions or OPEB in employer financial statements

•

Presenting payroll-related measures in required supplementary information for purposes of reporting by OPEB
plans and employers that provide OPEB

•

Classifying employer-paid member contributions for OPEB

•

Simplifying certain aspects of the alternative measurement method for OPEB

•

Accounting and financial reporting for OPEB provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB
plans.

Effective Date
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is
encouraged.
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting
The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency in the application of accounting and financial reporting
requirements. Consistent reporting will improve the usefulness of information for users of state and local government
financial statements.
GASB Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues
Summary
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only
existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole
purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on
debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance.

9

Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued)
Effective Date
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is
encouraged.
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Accounting and Financial Reporting
The requirements of this Statement will increase consistency in accounting and financial reporting for debt
extinguishments by establishing uniform guidance for derecognizing debt that is defeased in substance, regardless of how
cash and other monetary assets placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of extinguishing that debt were acquired.
The requirements of this Statement also will enhance consistency in financial reporting of prepaid insurance related to
debt that has been extinguished. In addition, this Statement will enhance the decision-usefulness of information in notes
to financial statements regarding debt that has been defeased in substance.
GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases
Summary
The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified
as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of
the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow
of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
Effective Date and Transition
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier
application is encouraged.
Leases should be recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that exist at the beginning of the period of
implementation (or, if applied to earlier periods, the beginning of the earliest period restated). However, lessors should not
restate the assets underlying their existing sales-type or direct financing leases. Any residual assets for those leases
become the carrying values of the underlying assets.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued)
How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Accounting and Financial Reporting
This Statement will increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring reporting of certain lease
liabilities that currently are not reported. It will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by
requiring lessees and lessors to report leases under a single model. This Statement also will enhance the decisionusefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by requiring notes to financial statements related to the
timing, significance, and purpose of a government’s leasing arrangements.
(1) Note. From GASB Pronouncements Summaries. Copyright 2017 by the Financial Accounting Foundation, 401 Merritt 7,
Norwalk, CT 06856, USA, and is reproduced with permission.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
Restriction on Use
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Board of Directors, management
and others within the administration of the Cooperative and the federal awarding agencies and the Minnesota Department
of Education, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
The comments and recommendations in the report are purely constructive in nature, and should be read in this context.
Our audit would not necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system because it was based on selected tests of the
accounting records and related data.
If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter, please feel free to contact us at your
convenience. We wish to thank you for the opportunity to be of service and for the courtesy and cooperation extended to
us by your staff.

ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Mankato, Minnesota
November 13, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major enterprise fund of the Southeast Service
Cooperative, Rochester, Minnesota, (the Cooperative) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Cooperative’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Cooperative’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of each major enterprise fund of the Cooperative as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
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Other Matters
Revenue and Claims Development Information
As disclosed in Note 1, information necessary to present the ten-year revenue and claims development information for its
Risk Management Pool fund is not readily available and therefore the Cooperative has not presented this information.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America has determined this information is necessary to
supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis starting on page 15, the Schedules of Employer’s Shares of the Net Pension Liability and the Schedules of
Employer’s Contributions starting on page 52 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Cooperative’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and combining and individual fund schedules and table
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Also, the
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements.
The combining and individual fund schedules and table and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 13, 2017, on our
consideration of the Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Cooperative’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Mankato, Minnesota
November 13, 2017
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
This section of Southeast Service Cooperative’s (the Cooperative) annual financial report presents our discussion and
analysis of the Cooperative’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2017. The
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in the
Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments.
The Cooperative is a membership organization and is recognized in terms of a legal entity as a public entity, independent
school district. The Cooperative does not have any levy authority, does not have any tax base, does not receive any
regular government funding; and doesn’t provide ongoing, regular instructional programming for K-12 students. This is an
important consideration in comparing and contrasting the Cooperative’s financial statements with other public entities
and/or Cooperatives. It is also an important consideration in that revenue has to be generated in order to provide services
and programs for members.
Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts - Independent Auditor’s Report, required supplementary
information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, and
supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two enterprise funds: Member Services and Risk
Management Pools. Due to the fact that the Cooperative does not have any significant financial activity as a result of
government funding, there is only one set of statements that is prepared on a government-wide basis.
Government-wide statements. The government-wide statements report information about the Cooperative as a whole
using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The balance sheet includes all of the
Cooperative’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. All of the current
year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
regardless of when cash is received or paid. The two government-wide statements report the Cooperative’s net position
and how they have changed. Net position - the difference between the Cooperative’s assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources - are one way to measure the Cooperative’s financial health or
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Cooperative’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial
position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
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Southeast Service Cooperative’s Summary of Net Position
Business-type
Activities
2017
2016
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets

$ 22,138,747
2,092,585
24,231,332

$ 24,715,239
2,265,683
26,980,922

Deferred outflows of resources

2,869,703

454,218

Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

4,626,114
7,591,110
12,217,224

Deferred inflows of resources
Net position
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for rate stabilization
Unrestricted
Total net position

Increase (Decrease)
Amount
Percent
$ (2,576,492)
(173,098)
(2,749,590)

(10.4) %
(7.6)
(10.2)

2,415,485

531.8

1,555,000
8,034,578
9,589,578

3,071,114
(443,468)
2,627,646

197.5
(5.5)
27.4

132,893

202,816

(69,923)

(34.5)

2,092,585
5,158,417
7,499,916

2,265,683
2,850,480
12,526,583

(173,098)
2,307,937
(5,026,667)

(7.6)
81.0
(40.1)

$ 14,750,918

$ 17,642,746

$ (2,891,828)

(16.4)
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Southeast Service Cooperative’s Changes in Net Position
Business-type
Activities
2017
2016
Revenues
Program revenues
Fees from patrons
Grants
Sales and other conversion of assets
Insurance premiums
Administrative fees
General revenues
Interest income
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues

$

505,087
1,258,548
175,426
63,192,020
1,947,606

$

632,947
1,625,659
171,254
58,932,263
1,669,340

Increase (Decrease)
Percent
Amount

$

(127,860)
(367,111)
4,172
4,259,757
278,266

(20.2) %
(22.6)
2.4
7.2
16.7

20,704
52,333
67,151,724

259,764
63,291,227

(239,060)
52,333
3,860,497

(92.0)
N/A
6.1

Expenses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contracted services
Supplies
Equipment (not capitalized)
Communication
Occupancy
Travel
Printing
Other
Administration
Depreciation
Wellness activities
Insurance premiums and administrative fees
Insurance claims
Insurance settlements
Network access fees
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets
Total expenses

1,585,571
1,126,170
1,043,377
28,467
98,210
32,012
286,413
227,598
13,645
54,649
181,650
388,348
14,523,953
48,668,067
1,597,329
184,915
3,178
70,043,552

1,629,958
544,282
1,345,265
24,908
100,501
50,547
165,713
351,783
15,711
12,271
(10,425)
185,508
577,845
13,512,602
45,419,661
3,908,608
(7,151)
67,827,587

(44,387)
581,888
(301,888)
3,559
(2,291)
(18,535)
120,700
(124,185)
(2,066)
42,378
10,425
(3,858)
(189,497)
1,011,351
3,248,406
(2,311,279)
184,915
10,329
2,215,965

(2.7)
106.9
(22.4)
14.3
(2.3)
(36.7)
72.8
(35.3)
(13.2)
345.4
(100.0)
(2.1)
(32.8)
7.5
7.2
(59.1)
N/A
(144.4)
3.3

Change in net position

(2,891,828)

(4,536,360)

1,644,532

(36.3)

Net position - July 1

17,642,746

22,179,106

(4,536,360)

(20.5)

$ 14,750,918

$ 17,642,746

$ (2,891,828)

(16.4)

Net position - June 30
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Condensed Financial Information

Net Position
June 30, 2017

Risk mgmt pool
fund - unrestricted
12.7%

Member services
fund
13.1%

Risk mgmt pool
fund - unrestricted,
designated
39.2%

Risk mgmt pool
fund - restricted
35.0%

Total Expenses (less health premiums)
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Other
1.1%
Travel
4.5%
Occupancy
5.6%
Communication
0.6%
Equipment
1.9%

Member wellness
activities
7.6%
Depreciation
3.6%

Loss on disposal of
capital assets
0.1%
Salaries
31.3%

Printing
0.3%

Supplies
0.6%
Contracted services
20.6%
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Employee benefits
22.2%

Total Revenue (less health premiums)
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
Interest earnings
0.5%

Fees from patrons
12.9%

Administrative
fees
49.9%

Grants
32.2%
Sales and other
conversions of
assets
4.5%

Analysis of Financial Position of the Cooperative as a Whole
The Cooperative’s combined net position was $14,750,918 on June 30, 2017. This was a decrease of 16.4 percent from
the prior year. This is primarily due to an increase in insurance settlement claims in both the Local Government Pool and
the School Pool of the Risk Management Pool.
The Cooperative continues to bear a 10 percent risk liability for member’s claims in the insurance pools. The Cooperative
must use insurance reserves to pay for any negative settlements. The Cooperative’s insurance reserve is now
$12,812,497 which is a decrease from 2016 of $2,595,302. This exceeds a possible 10 percent claims loss. The
maximum loss based on this year’s claims would be $4,866,807 ($48,668,067 X 10 percent). The majority of reserves
that are in excess of a 10 percent claim loss risk ($4,866,807) are specifically identified for each pool at the time of
settlements and are intended to reduce insurance premiums paid by members in future years. The Board of Directors
reviews the status of reserves and strategizes in using them on a one-time basis to set future premiums in both pools.
Total assets decreased by 10.2 percent. This was primarily due to the decrease in both the Local Government Pool and
the School Pool of the Risk Management Pool fund. The School Pool Rate Stabilization Reserve (RSR) funds were used
to provide participating School Pool groups with funding for wellness initiatives and for premium rate relief.
Total Long-Term Liabilities increased by $3,071,114 or 197.5%. This is due to a substantial increase in the Cooperative’s
share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) for both the Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) and Public Employees
Retirement Association (PERA). The Cooperative’s share of NPL for TRA increased from $890,782 to $3,410,891 or
282%. The Cooperative’s share of NPL for PERA increased from $616,720 to $1,177,328 or 91%. These increases are
primarily due to the financial condition of PERA and TRA since the Cooperative’s share of the NPL have changed very
little.
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Southeast Service Cooperative’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Business-type Activities
2017
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

$

Total

535,500
497,705
1,903,642
715,203
(1,559,465)

$ 2,092,585

2016
$

535,500
497,705
1,902,554
724,017
(1,394,093)

$ 2,265,683

Increase
(Decrease)
$

1,088
(8,814)
(165,372)

$ (173,098)

The Cooperative combined capital assets were $2,092,585 on June 30, 2017. This was a decrease of 7.6 percent from
the prior year. This decrease was mainly due to the annual depreciation expense recognized by the Cooperative.
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Financial Analysis of the Cooperative Funds
The revenue in the Member Services fund decreased in most areas. Fees for services decreased as some service
delivery was put on hold in order to better launch future programming in professional development. Grant revenue
decreased due to less spending on grant-specific activities. These decreases in revenue were more than offset by
increases in administrative revenue and sales-related revenue. These types of revenues meet the goal of diversifying
revenue in the Member Services fund.
Expenses increased in the Member Services fund by 5%. This was driven primary by a one-time cost for roof
replacement as well as additional pension expense relative to TRA and PERA. This is the first time the Cooperative has
had to book this additional pension expense.
The Risk Management Pool fund revenue and expenses increased by only 7 percent as both pools saw increases in
utilization and high claims which drove premiums higher.
Both funds currently have fully-funded reserve amounts that are held by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota, Inc. to
protect the financial stability of the pools.
Factors Bearing on the Cooperative’s Future
The Cooperative will continue to strengthen revenue through fees for service and administrative fees related to services
needed by member organizations. The Cooperative continues to rely very heavily on the revenue from health insurance
programming. The ever-changing impact of Federal, State and local funding for the Cooperative’s membership continues
to provide both additional opportunities and additional challenges to the Cooperative’s services. The Cooperative is
seeking ways to continue to diversify revenue in order be less reliant on health insurance programming funds for future
initiatives.
The greatest challenge to the Cooperative’s financial position for the future is the 10 percent risk factor that is part of a
contractual arrangement with Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota, Inc. The Cooperative has used a series of
processes intended to maintain the financial efficacy of the pools, however, the rising costs and unpredictability of the
health insurance market as well as Federal and State legislation will continue to affect future health insurance
programming and the finances needed.
Contacting the Cooperative’s Financial Management Staff
This financial report is designed to provide our members, customers, and creditors with a general overview of the
Cooperative’s finances and to demonstrate the Cooperative’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Accounting Department, Southeast
Service Cooperative, 210 Woodlake Drive Southeast, Rochester, MN 55904.
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Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Risk
Member
Management
Services
Pool
Total
Current Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Accounts
Interest
Due from other districts
Intergovernmental
Rate stabilization reserve
Prepaid items
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Land held for resale
Capital assets
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

$ 1,579,777

$ 14,179,770

$ 15,759,547

29,423
4,781
303,023
2,809
1,919,813

281
62,675
5,616
5,158,417
19,406,759

29,704
62,675
4,781
308,639
5,158,417
2,809
21,326,572

-

812,175

812,175

535,500
497,705
1,903,642
715,203
(1,559,465)
2,092,585

-

535,500
497,705
1,903,642
715,203
(1,559,465)
2,092,585

Total Noncurrent Assets

2,092,585

812,175

2,904,760

Total Assets

4,012,398

20,218,934

24,231,332

2,827,608

42,095

2,869,703

156,031
366
14,774
2,641
62,124
235,936

841,394
1,805,568
14,045
9,848
4,684,319
7,355,174

997,425
366
1,805,568
28,819
12,489
4,684,319
62,124
7,591,110

37,895
4,503,525
4,541,420

84,694
84,694

37,895
4,588,219
4,626,114

Total Liabilities
4,777,356
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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7,439,868

12,217,224

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables
Salaries payable
Health claims payable
Due to other districts
Due to other governments
Health claims payable - IBNR
Compensated absences payable - current portion
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Pension liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds (Continued)
June 30, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Risk
Member
Management
Services
Pool
Total
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pension resources

$

124,230

Net Position
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for rate stabilization
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Net position as reported above
Adjustments from net position to UFARS fund balance
Pension liability
Deferred inflows of pension resources
Deferred outflows of pension resources
Total UFARS fund balance

2,092,585
(154,165)

$

8,663

$

132,893

5,158,417
7,654,081

2,092,585
5,158,417
7,499,916

$ 1,938,420

$ 12,812,498

$ 14,750,918

$ 1,938,420

$ 12,812,498

$ 14,750,918

4,503,525
124,230
(2,827,608)
$ 3,738,567

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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84,694
8,663
(42,095)
$ 12,863,760

4,588,219
132,893
(2,869,703)
$ 16,602,327

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Risk
Member
Management
Services
Pool
Total
Operating Revenues
Fees from patrons
Grants
Local
State
Federal
Sales and other conversion of assets
Cost of sales
Insurance premiums
Administrative fees
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total Operating Revenues

$

Operating Expenses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contracted services
Supplies
Equipment (not capitalized)
Communication
Occupancy
Travel
Printing
Other
Administration
Depreciation
Wellness activities
Insurance premiums and administrative fees
Insurance claims
Insurance settlements
Network access fees
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

505,087

1,510,678
1,081,248
297,593
28,207
98,210
31,003
278,986
211,558
11,365
54,649
(795,223)
181,650
2,989,924

74,893
44,922
745,784
260
1,009
7,427
16,040
2,280
795,223
388,348
14,523,953
48,668,067
1,597,329
184,915
67,050,450

1,585,571
1,126,170
1,043,377
28,467
98,210
32,012
286,413
227,598
13,645
54,649
181,650
388,348
14,523,953
48,668,067
1,597,329
184,915
70,040,374

(962,681)

(1,946,673)

(2,909,354)

Net Position, June 30
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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20,339
20,339

20,704
(3,178)
17,526

(1,926,334)

(2,891,828)

(668,967)

668,967
(668,967)

(2,595,301)

(2,891,828)

2,234,947

15,407,799

17,642,746

$ 1,938,420

$ 12,812,498

$ 14,750,918

(296,527)

Net Position, July 1

505,087
9,372
151,601
1,097,575
175,426
63,192,020
1,947,606
52,333
67,131,020

668,967
-

Change in Net Position

$

63,192,020
1,911,757
65,103,777

(965,494)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

-

9,372
151,601
1,097,575
175,426
35,849
52,333
2,027,243

365
(3,178)
(2,813)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

$

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Risk
Member
Management
Services
Pool
Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from members
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments on insurance claims and settlements
Cash payments to employees for services
Grant receipts
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities

$

876,955
(164,890)
(2,017,466)
1,258,548

$ 66,969,554
(15,801,342)
(53,894,915)
(99,532)
-

$ 67,846,509
(15,966,232)
(53,894,915)
(2,116,998)
1,258,548

(46,853)

(2,826,235)

(2,873,088)

668,967
(668,967)

Cash Flows From Noncapital and
Related Financing Activities
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Noncapital
And Related Financing Activities

668,967
-

(668,967)

668,967

(668,967)

Cash Flows From Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Capital And
Related Financing Activities

(28,630)
11,553

-

(28,630)
11,553

(17,077)

-

(17,077)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received on investments

365

21,991

-

22,356

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And
Cash Equivalents

605,402

(3,473,211)

(2,867,809)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1

974,375

17,652,981

18,627,356

$ 1,579,777

$ 14,179,770

$ 15,759,547

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Risk
Member
Management
Services
Pool
Total
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) To Net Cash
Provided (Used) By Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable
Due from other districts
Intergovernmental
Rate stabilization reserve
Prepaid items
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow of resources
Deferred pension resources
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts and other payables
Salaries payable
Health claims payable
PCORI fees payable
Due to other districts
Due to other governments
Health claims payable - IBNR
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences payable
Pension liability
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow of resources
Deferred pension resources
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

(962,681)

186,997

-

$ (2,909,354)

186,997

(9,315)
39,856
106,974
11,676

1,871,393
(5,616)
(2,307,937)
-

1,862,078
39,856
101,358
(2,307,937)
11,676

(2,379,079)

(36,406)

(2,415,485)

38,518
366
(379)
(3,704)
(29,255)
(932)
3,026,264

837,483
(884,127)
(57,813)
(110,536)
9,848
(252,540)
54,453

876,001
366
(884,127)
(57,813)
(110,915)
6,144
(252,540)
(29,255)
(932)
3,080,717

(72,159)
$

$ (1,946,673)

(46,853)

2,236
$ (2,826,235)

(69,923)
$ (2,873,088)

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
June 30, 2017
Agency
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Due from other districts

$

7,853
64,357

$

72,210

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other districts

$

22
72,188

Total Liabilities

$

72,210

Total Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity
The Southeast Service Cooperative (the Cooperative) is a public agency established by an act of the 1976 Legislature of
the State of Minnesota. The primary purpose is to provide services, programs, in-service education, and planning to
participating school districts within an 11 county region in Southeastern Minnesota. The Cooperative has considered all
potential units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the Cooperative are such that exclusion would cause the Cooperative’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be considered
in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing
body, and (1) the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. The
Cooperative has no component units that meet the GASB criteria.
The Cooperative is also a participant in, and a sponsor of, a public entity risk pool established as a health insurance
purchasing pool for its members. Members may withdraw from the pool at any time, but to rejoin the pool the member
must wait two years. Any net investment a withdrawing member has with the pool remains in the pool. The pool is
responsible for any remaining “run-out” claims. The agreement for formation of the pool provides that the pool will be selfsustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $150,000
for members in the City/County/Other Governmental Agencies (the Government) pool and $125,000 for members in the
School pool. The pool also has an aggregate attachment point set at 110 percent of expected claims. Members are not
subject to a supplemental assessment in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the pool were to be exhausted,
members would not be responsible for the pool’s liabilities.
The Cooperative has a consulting agreement with Next Generation Benefits, LLC to assist in administering the Risk
Management Pool. The pool is administered by an agreement with Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota (BCBSM,
Inc.) from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. The accounting policies of the Cooperative conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
B. Joint Powers Agreement for Group Employee’s Benefit and Other Risk Management Services
The Cooperative and its participating members have established a risk management program. The objective is to procure
and manage insurance programs at lower costs. Members fund this program by remitting to the Cooperative an actuarially
determined premium. A fee is paid to BCBSM, Inc. on a monthly basis for administering the program. The claims portion
is remitted to BCBSM, Inc. on a weekly basis. Any remaining amounts are held by the Cooperative to fund any future
liabilities (insurance claims). There are 23 School pool and 29 other governmental units (Government) included in the
pool.
BCBSM, Inc. and the Cooperative on an annual basis, calculate an estimate of future claims based on claims experience
and actuarial studies to determine premiums. At the end of each plan year, a settlement is made with BCBSM, Inc. and
the reserve account and the Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) are funded. BCBSM, Inc. retains the risk for claims above
the Cooperative’s 110 percent aggregate attachment point, but the Cooperative is responsible for claims from 100 percent
to 110 percent. The Cooperative purchases through BCBSM, Inc., stop-loss insurance to pay individual insurance
member claims in excess of $150,000 for members of the Government pool and $125,000 for members in the School
pool. The premium plan year-end is August 31 for School pool and December 31 for the Government pool, even though
premium and claims activity is reported using a June 30 year end. As of June 30, 2017, plan year ending
December 31, 2016 for the Government pool has been settled and the plan year ended August 31, 2016 for the School
pool has been settled.

29

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
As part of the agreement, BCBSM, Inc. has established a rate stabilization reserve (RSR) to provide cash flow for the
insurance program. This reserve was established by BCBSM, Inc. with a contribution equal to one month’s estimated
charges. Each month, a portion of the premiums are to be deposited into the RSR to maintain this fund. The RSR is used
to provide funds when claims exceed premiums and to fund the IBNR Claims account if there are insufficient funds to fund
that liability and to receive any over-funding of the IBNR. Negative balances in the RSR represent advances to the
Cooperative and are reflected in the financial statements as a liability. The RSR balance is adjusted on an annual basis
as part of the year-end settlement as referred to above. The RSR activity and balances reflect the balances as of
June 30, 2017 for educational districts and cities, counties, and other local governmental agencies based on BCBSM, Inc.
estimates.
C. Basic Financial Statement Presentation
All activities of the Cooperative are accounted for within two enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are proprietary funds
used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. Proprietary funds are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the costs (expenses) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis are to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The financial statements of the proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
Cooperative. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the Cooperative’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much
like that used for proprietary funds.
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the Cooperative receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
grants, entitlement and donations. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year
when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the
Cooperative must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the Cooperative on a reimbursement basis.
Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants
and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as unearned revenue.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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E. Description of Funds
The Cooperative reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Member Services fund is the Cooperative’s primary operating fund. The fund accounts for all financial resources of
the Cooperative, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Risk Management Services fund is used to account for the various member services and risk management pool
activities of the Cooperative and also “termination reserves”, recalculated at annual settlement, to pay claims run-out in
the event the pool’s relationship with BCBSM Inc. ceases.
Additionally the Cooperative reports the following fiduciary fund:
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others.
The SEMNET fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. The
fund accounts for assets held by the Cooperative for the Southeast Minnesota Network of which the Cooperative serves
as the fiscal host.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing insurance services to members in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Cooperative’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for
insurance services. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Cooperative’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Deposits and Investments
The Cooperative’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested, to the extent available, in certificates of deposit and other
authorized investments. Earnings from such investments are allocated on the basis of applicable participation by each of
the funds.
The Cooperative may invest idle funds as authorized by Minnesota statutes, as follows:
1. Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.
2. Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and received the
highest credit rating, rated in one of the two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and have a final
maturity of thirteen months or less.
3. General obligations of a state or local government with taxing powers rated “A” or better; revenue obligations rated
“AA” or better.
4. General obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or better.
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5. Obligation of a school district with an original maturity not exceeding 13 months and (i) rated in the highest category
by a national bond rating service or (ii) enrolled in the credit enhancement program pursuant to statute section
126C.55.
6. Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.
7. Commercial paper issued by United States banks corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of highest quality
category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less.
8. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements with financial institutions qualified
as a “depository” by the government entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System with
capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government securities to the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers.
9. Guaranteed investment contracts (GIC's) issued or guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, a domestic
branch of a foreign bank, a United States insurance company, or its Canadian subsidiary, whose similar debt
obligations were rated in one of the top two rating categories by a nationally recognized rating agency.
The Cooperative has not adopted a formal investment policy that addresses interest rate and credit risk.
Investments for the Cooperative are reported at fair value. The Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund Investment
Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as
the fair value of the pool shares. The investment in the Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund is not subject to the
credit risk classifications as noted in paragraph 9 of GASB Statement No. 40.
The Cooperative categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Cooperative’s recurring fair value measurements are listed in detail on
page 36 and are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable include amounts billed to members for services provided before year end. All trade receivables are
shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. It has been determined, as of June 30, 2017, that no allowance for
uncollectible accounts is necessary.
Rate Stabilization Reserve
As described in Note 1B, BCBSM, Inc. retains a portion of the premium paid as a rate stabilization reserve. This amount
is recalculated annually in conjunction with the annual settlement. Negative balances in the RSR represent advances by
BCBSM, Inc. and require repayment by the Plan. For the plan years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the rate stabilization
reserve held by BCBSM, Inc. was $5,158,417 and $2,850,480, respectively.
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Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.
Assets Held for Resale
These assets represent land owned by the Cooperative with the intent to sell to developers. This land is recorded at the
lesser of historical cost or net realizable value.
Capital Assets
Capital assets include property, plant and equipment. Capital assets are defined by the Cooperative as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 (amount not rounded). Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date
of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during
the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Property, plant, and equipment of the Cooperative are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Assets

Years

Buildings
Equipment and vehicles

24
3 - 15

Deferred Outflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The Cooperative has only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, deferred
pension resources, is reported only in the statement of net position. This item results from actuarial calculations and
current year pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date.
Health Claims Payable
Health claims payable represent amounts payable to BCBSM, Inc. or member groups for annual settlements and are
reflected as accounts and other payables in the financial statements.
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Health Claims Payable - IBNR (Incurred but Not Reported)
Health claims payable include provisions for claims reported but not settled, future claims adjustment expenses, and
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). The provision for these claims liabilities is determined by an actuarial calculation
prepared by BCBSM, Inc. based on claims incurred plus a completion factor estimating the amount, which will ultimately
be paid by each claimant. The provision for claims liabilities is estimated based on the Cooperative’s experience since
the inception of the program, and is based on the June 30, 2017 estimated settlement for both education districts and
cities/counties and other local governmental agencies. The Cooperative has reserved investments in excess of these
liabilities. Management believes the claims liabilities based on BCBSM, Inc. estimated actuarial calculations as of
June 30, 2017 adequately reflect the estimated claims liabilities for the current year ended June 30, 2017.
Information necessary to separate claims reported but not settled, claims adjustment expenses, and claims incurred but
not reported is not readily available. Such information includes the actuarial estimates of incurred claims and expenses at
the end of the year, claims paid related to prior years' claims, and subsequent adjustments to prior years' estimates for
incurred claims and expenses. This information, if available, can be used to present Ten-Year Claims Development
Information.
Pensions
Teachers Retirement Association (TRA)
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) and additions to/deductions
from TRA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TRA.
TRA has a special funding situation created by direct aid contributions made by the State of Minnesota, City of
Minneapolis and Minneapolis School District. The direct aid is a result of the merger of the Minneapolis Teachers
Retirement Fund Association merger into TRA in 2006. A second direct aid source is from the State of Minnesota for the
merger of the Duluth Teacher’s Retirement Fund Association (DTRFA) in 2015. Additional information can be found in
Note 3.
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions
to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA.
For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments and refunds
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and fund financial statements will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has one type of item, which arises only under a full accrual basis of
accounting that qualifies as needing to be reported in this category. Accordingly, the item, deferred pension resources, is
reported only in the government-wide statement of net position and results from actuarial calculations.
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ACA Fees Payable
Under the Affordable Care Act (ACA), health plan sponsors are required to pay a Temporary Reinsurance Fee (TRP) to
fund a Transitional Reinsurance Program in place from 2014 to 2016 which is payable to the Department of Health and
Human Services (HHS). The filing date for the TRP fee is November 15th, with payment due by January 15th, for each
applicable year. TRP fees are based on the number of individuals covered under each group member's plan. The group
members participating in the Cooperative's health insurance purchasing pool are responsible for filing and paying these
fees to HHS.
To assist in collecting funds to pay for each group's estimated TRP fees, the Cooperative, members, and BCBSM have
agreed to include these fees as a portion of the groups' premiums paid to BCBSM. BCBSM collects these fees and
transmits them to the Cooperative. The Cooperative holds these fees in escrow until the groups' estimated filing and
payment periods, at which time funds will be refunded back to the pool groups.
Vacation Payable
Vacation pay is earned based on position and years of service. Vacation may be accumulated up to a maximum amount
equal to 1.5 times the amount the employee is eligible to earn in the current year. Employees are required to take at least
five consecutive days of vacation each year. The Member Services fund is typically used to liquidate vacation payable.
Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources. Net position is displayed in three components:
a. Investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.
b. Restricted net position - Consist of net position restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.
c.

Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “investment in capital
assets”.
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A. Deposits and Investments
Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Cooperative’s deposits
and investments may not be returned or the Cooperative will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession
of an outside party. In accordance with Minnesota statutes and as authorized by the Board of Directors, the Cooperative
maintains deposits at those depository banks, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve System.
Minnesota statutes require that all Cooperative deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance, bonds, or irrevocable
standby letters of credit from Federal Home Loan Banks.
Authorized collateral in lieu of a corporate surety bond includes:
•

United States government Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds;

•

Issues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by a recognized industry quotation
service available to the government entity;

•

General obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated “A” or better by a
national bond rating service, or revenue obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers
which is rated “AA” or better by a national bond rating service;

•

General obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be pledged as collateral against funds
deposited by that same local government entity;

•

Irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks to a municipality accompanied by written
evidence that the bank’s public debt is rated “AA” or better by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or Standard & Poor’s
Corporation; and

•

Time deposits that are fully insured by any Federal agency.

Minnesota statutes require that all collateral shall be placed in safekeeping in a restricted account at a Federal Reserve
Bank, or in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution that is not owned or
controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. The selection should be approved by the Cooperative.
At year end, the Cooperative’s carrying amount of deposits was $2,238,321 and the bank balance was $2,368,628 of
which $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining amount was covered by collateral held by
the bank’s agent in the Cooperative’s name.
The Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund (MSDLAF) is a trust organized and existing under the laws of the State
and the Minnesota Joint Powers Act, as amended. The trust was established for the purpose of allowing Minnesota
school districts to pool their investment funds to obtain a competitive investment yield, while maintaining liquidity and
preserving capital. The credit rating for the MSDLAF is AAAm. The Cooperative’s investment in the MSDLAF and Broker
money markets are equal to the value of pool shares.
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As of June 30, 2017, the Cooperative had the following investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by
the Cooperative or its agent in the Cooperative’s name:

Types of Investments

Credit
Quality/
Ratings (1)

Segmented
Time
Distribution (2)

Fair Value Measurement Using
Amount

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Pooled investments at amortized costs
Wells Fargo Dreyfus Cash Manag
Minnesota School District
Max Class
Minnesota School District
Liquid Asset Fund

N/A

less than 1 year

N/A

less than 1 year

361

N/A

less than 1 year

49,864

Non-pooled investments at fair value
Broker CDs
AAA
Broker CDs
AAA
Broker CDs
AAA
Municipal bonds
N/A/AAA
Municipal bonds
Aa1/N/A
Municipal bonds
Aa1/AA
Municipal bonds
A1/AA
Municipal bonds
N/A/AA+
Municipal bonds
Aaa/AAA
Municipal bonds
Aa3/AA
Municipal bonds
Aa2/N/A
Municipal bonds
Aa2/AA
Municipal bonds
Aa1/AA+
Municipal bonds
Aa2/N/A
Municipal bonds
Aa2/A+
Municipal bonds
Aa1/AA+
Municipal bonds
Aa1/AAMunicipal bonds
Aaa/N/A
Municipal bonds
Aa1/AAMunicipal bonds
A1/A+

less than 6 months
6 to 12 months
1 to 3 years
Less than 6 months
Less than 6 months
Less than 6 months
Less than 6 months
6 to 12 months
6 to 12 months
6 to 12 months
6 to 12 months
6 to 12 months
6 to 12 months
1-3 years
1-3 years
1-3 years
1-3 years
Over 3 Years
Over 3 Years
Over 3 Years

Total investments

$

229,278

245,005
3,424,607
2,942,795
35,062
224,991
10,000
175,212
203,518
130,304
103,052
50,020
100,916
100,148
150,549
402,504
326,548
1,402,776
1,042,791
1,681,078
497,600

$

35,062
224,991
10,000
175,212
203,518
130,304
103,052
50,020
100,916
100,148
150,549
402,504
326,548
1,402,776
1,042,791
1,681,078
497,600

$

245,005
3,424,607
2,942,795
-

$

-

$ 13,528,979

$

6,637,069

$

6,612,407

$

-

(1) Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies where applicable to indicate associated credit risk.
N/A indicates not applicable or available.
(2) Interest rate risk is disclosed using the segmented time distribution method.
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A reconciliation of cash and temporary investments as shown on the statement of net position for the Cooperative follows:

Deposits
Cash on hand
Investments
Total
Cash and temporary investments
Plus fiduciary fund cash and temporary investments
Total

$

2,238,321
100
13,528,979

$

15,767,400

$

15,759,547
7,853

$

15,767,400

B. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Balance
July 1, 2016
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Business-type activities
capital assets, net

$

535,500

Additions

$

Balance
June 30, 2017

Deletions

-

$

-

$

535,500

497,705
1,902,554
724,017
3,124,276

3,455
25,175
28,630

(2,367)
(33,989)
(36,356)

497,705
1,903,642
715,203
3,116,550

(93,268)
(939,744)
(361,081)
(1,394,093)

(24,885)
(73,909)
(88,203)
(186,997)

1,669
19,956
21,625

(118,153)
(1,011,984)
(429,328)
(1,559,465)

$ 2,265,683

Depreciation expense was charged to business type activities as follows:
Member services
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$

(158,367)

$

(14,731)

$ 2,092,585

$

186,997
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C. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers
During 2017, the Cooperative transferred $668,967 from the Risk Management Pool to the Member Services fund. This
transfer occurred to move cash reserves from the current year, which is attributable to health insurance operations of the
Members Services fund.
D. Leases and Rents
Operating Leases
The Cooperative is under contract for thirteen operating leases at year end. They are leasing mailing equipment from
Pitney Bowes for four years at a base rate of $125 per month. This lease expires in September 2017. The Cooperative
also has a lease for two copying equipment units from A+ Imaging Systems for three years at a base rate $626 per
month. This lease expires in April 2018. The Cooperate also has a lease for nine Jeep Cherokees under a master lease
agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management for five years with base rate of $5,477 per month. This lease expires
January 2021. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30,

Mailing
Equipment

Copiers

Vehicles

Total

2018
2019
2020
2021

$

376
-

$

6,886
-

$

65,729
65,729
54,807
8,319

$

72,991
65,729
54,807
8,319

Total

$

376

$

6,886

$

194,584

$

201,846

$

1,505

$

7,513

$

61,405

$

70,423

Lease expense - 2017
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E. Long-term Debt
Changes in Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance
Business-type activities
Other liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Pension liability
TRA
PERA
Total

$

100,951

Additions

$

88,636

890,782
616,720

2,575,917
628,175

$ 1,608,453

$ 3,292,728

Ending
Balance

Deductions

$

$

(89,568)

$

100,019

(55,808)
(67,567)

3,410,891
1,177,328

(212,943)

$ 4,688,238

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

$

62,124
-

$

62,124

F. Unrestricted - Board Designated Net Position
Board designated unrestricted net position for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Member
Services
Designated for RSR margin - CCOGA
Designated for RSR margin - School
Designated for unemployment fund

$
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124,012

Risk
Management
Pool
$ 4,668,801
1,113,542
-
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans Statewide
Substantially all employees of the Cooperative are required by state law to belong to pension plans administered by
Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) or Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA), all of which are
administered on a statewide basis.
Disclosures relating to these plans follow:
A. Teachers Retirement Association (TRA)
1. Plan Description
The Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) is an administrator of a multiple employer, cost-sharing, defined benefit
retirement fund. TRA administers a Basic Plan (without Social Security coverage) and a Coordinated Plan (with
Social Security coverage) in accordance with Minnesota statutes, chapters 354 and 356. TRA is a separate statutory
entity and administered by a Board of Trustees. The Board consists of four active member, one retired member and
three statutory officials.
Teachers employed in Minnesota’s public elementary and secondary school, charter schools, and certain educational
institutions maintained by the State (except those teachers employed by the City of St. Paul, and by the University of
Minnesota system) are required to be TRA members. State university, community college, and technical college
teachers first employed by the Minnesota State College and Universities (MnSCU) may elect TRA coverage within
one year of eligible employment. Alternatively, these teachers may elect coverage through the Defined Contribution
Retirement Plan (DCR) administered by MnSCU.
2. Benefits Provided
TRA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members and benefits to survivors upon death of
eligible members. Benefits are established by Minnesota statute and vest after three years of service credit. The
defined retirement benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five consecutive years of
allowable service, age and a formula multiplier based on years of credit at termination of service.
Two methods are used to compute benefits for TRA’s Coordinated and Basic Plan members. Members first
employed before July 1, 1989 receive the greater of the Tier I or Tier II as described:

Tier I:
Basic

Coordinated

Step Rate Formula

Percentage

1st ten years of service

2.2 percent per year

All years after

2.7 percent per year

1st ten years if service years
are prior to July 1, 2006
1st ten years if service years
are July 1, 2006 or after
All other years of service if service
years are prior to July 1, 2006
All other years of service if service
years are July 1, 2006 or after
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1.2 percent per year
1.4 percent per year
1.7 percent per year
1.9 percent per year
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
With these provisions:
1. Normal retirement age is 65 with less than 30 years of allowable service and age 62 with 30 or more years of
allowable service.
2. Three percent per year early retirement reduction factors for all years under normal retirement age.
3. Unreduced benefits for early retirement under a Rule-of-90 (age plus allowable service equals 90 or more).
Or
Tier II: For years of service prior to July 1, 2006, a level formula of 1.7 percent per year for coordinated members and
2.7 percent per year for basic members. For years of service July 1, 2006 and after, a level formula of 1.9 percent per
year for Coordinated members and 2.7 for Basic members applies. Beginning July 1, 2015, the early retirement
reduction factors are based on rates established under Minnesota Statute. Smaller reductions, more favorable to the
member, will be applied to individuals who reach age 62 and have 30 years or more of service credit.
Members first employed after June 30, 1989 receive only the Tier II calculation with a normal retirement age that is
their retirement age for full Social Security retirement benefits, but not to exceed age 66.
Six different types of annuities are available to members upon retirement. The No Refund Life Plan is a lifetime
annuity that ceases upon the death or the retiree - no survivor annuity is payable. A retiring member may also choose
to provide survivor benefits to a designated beneficiary(ies) by selecting one of the five plans, which have survivorship
features. Vested members may also leave their contributions in the TRA Fund upon termination of service in order to
qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Any member terminating service is also eligible for a refund of their
employee contributions plus interest.
The benefit provisions stated apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to
benefits but not yet receiving them are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public
service.
3. Contribution Rate
Per Minnesota statutes, chapter 354 sets the contribution rates for employees and employers. Rates for each fiscal
year were:

Plan

Employee

Basic
Coordinated

11.00%
7.50%

Employer
11.50%
7.50%

The Cooperative’s contributions to TRA for the years ending June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were $49,198, $55,808
and $56,713, respectively. The Cooperative’s contributions were equal to the contractually required contributions for
each year as set by Minnesota statute.
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
The following is a reconciliation of employer contributions in TRA’s CAFR “Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position” to the employer contributions used in schedule of employer and non-employer pension allocations.
Employer contributions reported in TRA's CAFR Statement of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position
Add employer contributions not related to future contribution efforts
Deduct TRA's contributions not included in allocation

$

Total employer contributions
Total non-employer contributions

354,961,140
26,356
(442,978)
354,544,518
35,587,410

Total contributions reported in schedule of employer and non-employer
pension allocations

$

390,131,928

Amounts reported in the allocation schedules may not precisely agree with financial statement amounts or actuarial
valuations due to the number of decimal places used in the allocations. TRA has rounded percentage amounts to the
nearest ten thousandths.
4. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement.
Key Methods and Assumptions Used in Valuation of Total Pension Liability
Actuarial information
Measurement date
Valuation date
Experience study
Actuarial cost method
Actuarial assumptions
Investment rate of return
Price inflation
Wage growth rate
Projected salary increase
Cost of living adjustment

June 30, 2016
July 1, 2016
June 5, 2015
Entry Age Normal
4.66%, from the Single Equivalent Interest Rate calculation
2.75%
3.50%
3.50 - 9.50%
2.00%

Mortality assumption
Pre-retirement

RP-2014 white collar employee table, male rates
set back six years and female rates set back five
years. Generational projection uses the MP-2015
scale.
RP-2014 white collar annuitant table, male rates
set back three years and female rates set back three
years, with further adjustments of the rates.
Generational projection uses the MP-2015 scale.
RP-2014 disabled retiree mortality table,
without adjustment.

Post-retirement

Post-disability
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Target
Allocation

Domestic stocks
International stocks
Bonds
Alternative assets
Unallocated cash

45.00 %
15.00
18.00
20.00
2.00

Total

5.50 %
6.00
1.45
6.40
0.50

100.00 %

The TRA actuary has determined the average of the expected remaining service lives of all members for fiscal year
2016 is 6.00 years. The “Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience”, “Changes of Assumptions” and
“Changes in Proportion” use the amortization period of 6.00 years in the schedule presented. The amortization period
for “Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments” is over a period
of 5.00 years as required by GASB 68
5. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.66 percent. This is a decrease from the discount
rate at the prior measurement date of 8.00 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that employee contributions will be made at the fiscal 2017 contribution rate, contributions from school
districts will be made at contractually required rates (actuarially determined), and contributions from the state will be
made at current statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be depleted in 2052 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the determination of the
Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR). The long-term expected rate of return was applied to periods before 2052 and
the Municipal Bond Index Rate of 3.01 percent was applied to periods on and after 2052, resulting in a SEIR of 4.66
percent. Based on fiduciary net position at the prior year measurement date, the discount rate of 8.00 percent was
used and it was not necessary to calculate the SEIR.
6. Net Pension Liability
At June 30, 2017, the Southeast Service Cooperative (the Cooperative) reported a liability of $3,410,891 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The Cooperative’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Cooperative’s contributions to TRA in
relation to total system contributions including direct aid from the State of Minnesota, City of Minneapolis and
Minneapolis School District. The Cooperative proportionate share was 0.0143 percent at the end of the measurement
period and 0.0144 percent for the beginning of the year.
The pension liability amount reflected a reduction due to direct aid provided to TRA. The amount recognized by the
Cooperative as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the direct aid, and total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the Cooperative were as follows:
Cooperative's proportionate share of net pension liability
State's proportionate share of net pension liability associated with the Cooperative
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3,410,891
341,595
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
There was a change in actuarial assumptions that affected the measurement of the total liability since the prior
measurement date. Post-retirement benefit adjustments are now assumed to be 2.0 percent annually. In the previous
measurement, the COLA increased to 2.5 percent in 2034.
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Cooperative recognized pension expense of $497,489. It also recognized
$47,698 as an increase to pension expense for the support provided by direct aid.
On June 30, 2017, the Cooperative had deferred resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions to TRA subsequent
to the measurement date

$

Total

$

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

28,811
1,949,552

$

95
-

147,649
126,655

4,694

49,198

-

2,301,865

$

4,789

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $49,198 related to pensions resulting from the Cooperative’s contributions to
TRA subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2018. Other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

465,834
465,835
503,987
433,961
378,261

7. Pension Liability Sensitivity
The following presents the Cooperative’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 4.66 percent as well as the liability measured using one percent lower and one percent higher.
Cooperative proportionate share of NPL
1 Percent
Decrease (3.66%)
$

4,394,080

1 Percent
Increase (5.66%)

Current (4.66%)
$

3,410,891

$

2,610,116

The Cooperative’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer contributions to TRA in relation to
TRA’s total employer contributions including direct aid contributions from the State of Minnesota, City of Minneapolis
and Minneapolis School District.
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
8. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued TRA financial report.
That report can be obtained at www.MinnesotaTRA.org, by writing to TRA at 60 Empire Drive, Suite 400,
St. Paul, MN, 55103-4000; or by calling (651-296-2409 or 800-657-3669.
B. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
1. Plan Description
The Cooperative participates in the following defined benefit pension plans administered by the Public Employees
Retirement Association (PERA). PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are established and administered in
accordance with Minnesota statutes, chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified
plans under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
General Employees Retirement Plan (GERF)
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the Cooperative, other than teachers, are covered by the General
Employees Retirement Fund (GERF). GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan.
Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. The Basic Plan was
closed to new members in 1967. All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan.
2. Benefits Provided
PERA provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state statute and can
only be modified by the state legislature.
Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Increases are related to the funding ratio of the
plan. Members in plans that are at least 90 percent funded for two consecutive years are given 2.5 percent increases.
Members in plans that have not exceeded 90 percent funded, or have fallen below 80 percent, are given 1 percent
increases.
The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active plan
participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound by
the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.
GERF Benefits
Benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of allowable service, age, and
years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and
Basic Plan members. The retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a
level accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2 percent of
average salary for each of the first ten years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining year. The annuity accrual
rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2 percent of average salary for each of the first ten years and 1.7 percent for
each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan
members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated Plan members for each year of service. For members hired prior to July 1,
1989, a full annuity is available when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For
members hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits
capped at 66. Disability benefits are available for vested members, and are based upon years of service and average
high-five salary.
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
3. Contributions
Minnesota statutes chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates can only
be modified by the state legislature.
GERF Contributions
Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.10 percent and 6.25 percent,
respectively, of their annual covered salary in fiscal year 2017. In fiscal year 2017, the Cooperative was required to
contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78 percent for Basic Plan members and 7.50
percent of Coordinated Plan members. The Cooperative’s contributions to the GERF for the years ending June 30,
2017, 2016 and 2015 were $71,530, $67,507 and $51,424, respectively. The Cooperative’s contributions were equal
to the contractually required contributions for each year as set by Minnesota statute.
4. Pension Costs
At June 30, 2017, the Cooperative reported a liability of $1,177,328 for its proportionate share of the GERF’s net
pension liability. The Cooperative’s net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s
contribution of $6 million to the fund in 2016. The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity
and the State’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The State of Minnesota’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability associated with the Cooperative totaled $15,387. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Cooperative’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
Cooperative’s contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from
July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s
participating employers. At June 30, 2016, the Cooperative’s proportion was 0.0145 percent which was an increase of
0.0026 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Cooperative recognized pension expense of $169,355 for its proportionate
share of GERF’s pension expense. In addition, the Cooperative recognized an additional $4,588 as pension expense
(and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $6 million to the GERF.
At June 30, 2017, the Cooperative reported its proportionate share of GERF’s deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources, and its contributions subsequent to the measurement date, from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments
Changes in proportion
Contributions to GERF subsequent
to the measurement date.

$

3,981
255,031

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources
$

129,377
107,919

32,463
-

71,530

Total

$
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567,838

95,641
-

$

128,104
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
Deferred outflows of resources totaling $71,530 related to pensions resulting from the Cooperative’s contributions to
GERF subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to GERF
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
2018
2019
2020
2021

$

102,135
80,066
143,475
42,528

5. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:
Inflation
Active Member Payroll Growth
Investment Rate of Return

2.50% per year
3.25% per year
7.50%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, survivors and
disabilitants were based on RP-2014 tables for the GERF for males or females, as appropriate, with slight
adjustments. Cost of living benefit increases for retirees are assumed to be: 1 percent per year for all future years for
the GERF.
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies.
The most recent four-year experience study in the GERF was completed in 2015.
The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2016:
GERF
•
•
•

The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and
2.5 percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year for all future years.
The assumed investment return was changed from 7.9 percent to 7.5 percent. The single discount rate was
changed from 7.9 percent to 7.5 percent.
Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 2015. The assumed
future salary increases, payroll growth and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for
payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation.
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Note 3: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)
The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the
reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:
Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Domestic stocks
International stocks
Bonds
Alternative assets
Cash

45.00 %
15.00
18.00
20.00
2.00

Total

5.50 %
6.00
1.45
6.40
0.50

100.00 %

6. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent, a reduction from the 7.90 percent used
in 2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary
net position of the GERF was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
7. Pension Liability Sensitivity
The following presents the Cooperative’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it participates in,
calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the Cooperative’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 1 percentage point
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:
Cooperative Proportionate Share of NPL
1 Percent
Decrease (6.50%)
$

1,672,155

1 Percent
Increase (8.50%)

Current (7.50%)
$

1,177,328

$

769,726

8. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued PERA
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained on the Internet at www.mnpera.org.
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Note 4: Commitment
The Cooperative continues to bear a 10 percent risk liability for member’s claims in the insurance pools. The Cooperative
must use insurance reserves to pay for any negative settlements. The Cooperative’s insurance reserve is now
$12,812,497 which exceeds the 10 percent claims loss. The maximum loss based on this year’s claims would be
$4,866,807 ($48,668,067 X 10 percent).

Note 5: Joint Powers Agreement
Minnesota Services Cooperative (MSC - hereafter referred to as “the Agency”) was established under a joint and
cooperative agreement between Southeast Service Cooperative, Northwest Service Cooperative, Lakes Country Service
Cooperative, Southwest/West Central Service Cooperative, Resource, Training and Solutions, Northeast Service
Cooperative, South Central Service Cooperative and Metropolitan Educational Cooperative Service Unit (Metro ECSU)
and National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA). The general purpose of the Agency is to analyze and identify service
opportunities and needs for the participating members as well as facilitate the creation and delivery of the determined
programs.
The Agency’s fiscal year runs from July 1 to June 30. The governing body of the Agency is made up of individuals from
the member cooperatives. An annual budget is presented to and approved by the Board of Directors. Funds may be
expended by the Board of Directors or the Executive Council in accordance with established laws and based on budget
amounts.
In the event of dissolution of the Agency, assets and liabilities shall be divided among all members. An investment in joint
venture is not recorded for MSC because there is no known or explicit method for dividing up the assets and liabilities of
MSC in the event of dissolution. We cannot reasonably estimate the Cooperative’s portion of MSC.

Note 6: Other Information
Risk Management
The Cooperative is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the Cooperative carries commercial insurance.
Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. Liabilities, if any, include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). The
Cooperative’s management is not aware of any incurred but not reported claims.
Subsequent Events
In August 2017, the Cooperative agreed, along with six other cooperatives throughout the state of Minnesota, to establish
a new joint powers entity. The purpose of this agreement is to permit the parties to establish a statewide joint powers
entity with enumerated decision-making powers over regional health insurance pools, to purchase and hold a statewide
stop-loss insurance policy at higher attachment points for lower fees, to permit limited commingling of Program Funds in a
statewide reserve to permit stop loss insurance pooling at lower attachment points for members in regional health
insurance pools, and to enter into statewide contracts with third party administrators, employees, consultants, actuaries,
attorneys, lobbyists and other vendors. The board shall be comprised of two board members from each party to the
agreement. One board member from each party shall be a current sitting member of that party's board of directors, and
shall be appointed by the party's board of directors. The second board member shall be the then current Executive
Director of that party and shall service in an ex-officio non-voting capacity.
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Schedule of Employer’s Share of TRA Net Pension Liability
Required Supplementary Information
Cooperative's
State's

Proportionate

Proportionate

Share of the

Cooperative's

Share of the

Net Pension

Proportionate

Net Pension

Liability as a

Net Position

Percentage of

as a Percentage

Cooperative's

Share of

Liability

Fiscal

Proportion of

the Net Pension

Associated

Year

the Net Pension

Liability

with the Cooperative

Total

Ending

Liability

(a)

(b)

(a+b)

$

3,410,891

$

Cooperative's
Covered-Employee Covered-Employee
Payroll
Payroll

Plan Fiduciary

(a/c)

(c)

of the Total
Pension
Liability

06/30/16

0.0143 %

341,595

$ 3,752,486

744,107

458.4 %

44.9 %

06/30/15

0.0144

890,782

109,491

1,000,273

756,173

117.8

76.8

06/30/14

0.0124

571,383

40,280

611,663

568,129

100.6

81.1

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
Schedule of Employer’s TRA Contributions

Fiscal

Year
Ending
06/30/17
06/30/16
06/30/15

Statutorily
Required
Contribution
(a)
$

49,198
55,808
56,713

Required Supplementary Information
Contributions in
Contributions as
Relation to the
a Percentage of
Statutorily
Contribution
Cooperative's
Required
Deficiency
Covered-Employee Covered-Employee
Payroll
Contribution
(Excess)
Payroll
(b/c)
(b)
(a-b)
(c)
$

49,198
55,808
56,713

$

-

$

655,973
744,107
756,173

7.5 %
7.5
7.5

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - TRA
There are no factors that affect trends in the amounts reported, such as change of benefit terms or assumptions. Details,
if necessary, can be obtained from the TRA CAFR
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Schedule of Employer’s Share of PERA Net Pension Liability
Required Supplementary Information

Fiscal
Year
Ending

Cooperative's
Proportion of
the Net Pension
Liability

06/30/16
06/30/15
06/30/14

0.0145 %
0.0119
0.0131

Cooperative's
Proportionate
Share of
the Net Pension
Liability
(a)
$

1,177,328
616,720
615,372

State's
Proportionate
Share of
the Net Pension
Liability
Associated with
the Cooperative
(b)
$

15,387
-

Cooperative's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
Cooperative's
Covered-Employee Covered-Employee
Payroll
Payroll
(a/c)
(c)

Total
(a+b)
$ 1,192,715
616,720
615,372

$

931,131
709,297
686,841

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
as a Percentage
of the Total
Pension Liability

126.4 %
86.9
89.6

68.9 %
78.2
78.7

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
Schedule of Employer’s PERA Contributions

Fiscal
Year
Ending
06/30/17
06/30/16
06/30/15

Statutorily
Required
Contribution
(a)
$

71,530
67,507
51,424

Required Supplementary Information
Contributions in
Contributions as
Relation to the
a Percentage of
Statutorily
Contribution
Cooperative's
Required
Deficiency
Covered-Employee Covered-Employee
Payroll
Contribution
(Excess)
Payroll
(b/c)
(b)
(a-b)
(c)
$

71,530
67,507
51,424

$

-

$

953,739
900,093
709,297

7.5 %
7.5
7.3

Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - PERA
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions
2016 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and 2.5
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year for all future years. The assumed investment return was changed from
7.9 percent to 7.5 percent. The single discount rate was changed from 7.9 percent to 7.5 percent. Other assumptions
were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 2015. The assumed future salary increases, payroll
growth and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation.
2015 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2030 and 2.5
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter.
Changes in Plan Provisions
2015 - On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General Employees Fund,
which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increased the fiduciary plan net position by $892 million.
Upon consolidation, state and employer contributions were revised.
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Member Services Cost Centers - Continued on the Following Pages
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

01-105
General
Administrative
Operating Revenues
Fees from patrons
Grants
Local
State
Federal
Sales and other conversion of assets
Administrative fees
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total Operating Revenues

$

Innovation
$

52,286
165,570

Operating Expenses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contracted services
Supplies
Equipment
Communication
Occupancy
Travel
Printing
Other
Administration
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

56

112,806

$

-

112,806

35,849
35,849

41,303
12,264
64
958
5,183
5,628
237
(55,162)
10,475

69,456
32,682
11,843
2,407
1,127
1,290
62,366
292
912
2,206
184,581

1,063
574
17,780
42
124
337
30
207
20,157

15,260

(10,475)

(71,775)

15,692

-

684,592

-

(10,475)

668,967
$

$

01-210
Benefit
Services

378,330
130,389
158,015
10,836
112,750
8,187
59,834
77,406
4,331
54,649
(844,417)
150,310

15,625

Transfers In

-

01-109
Wood Lake
Meeting Center

-

365
365

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

113,284

01-106/107

(71,775)

$

(10,475)

15,692

$

(71,775)

$

15,692

01-217
Regional
Center of
Excellence
$

$

-

01-219
01-221
Regional Center Regional Center
Center of
Center of
Excellence - State Excellence - MDE
$

-

$

-

01-501

01-579
Mobile
Science
Lab

SHIP
Grant
$

-

$

01-600
Health &
Safety
Management

4,695

$

39,634

01-601
EHSM
$

-

1,097,575
1,097,575

84,519
84,519

44,426
44,426

9,786
9,786

6,381
3,000
14,076

39,634

56,630
56,630

699,351
209,942
5,007
12,723
8,237
14,287
66,208
1,441
80,379
1,097,575

36,078
10,666
1,494
26,324
9,957
84,519

29,099
8,961
661
2,360
53
3,292
44,426

5,969
2,912
1,317
1,309
21
154
11,682

2,229
741
220
6,542
60
320
22,470
114
15
436
33,147

20,999
3,827
1,498
362
3,215
3,744
449
406
34,500

1,590
465
439
55,092
6
780
58,372

-

-

-

(1,896)

(19,071)

5,134

(1,742)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

-

$

-

-

-

(1,896)

(19,071)

$

(1,896)
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5,134

$

(19,071)

(1,742)

$

5,134

$

(1,742)

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Member Services Cost Centers (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

01-609
Coop
Purchasing
Operating Revenues
Fees from patrons
Grants
Local
State
Federal
Sales and other conversion of assets
Administrative fees
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total Operating Revenues

$

-

01-612
Rochester Area
01-614
Math Science Professional
Partnership Development
$

24,556

$

80,902

01-615
Student
Academics
$

129,210

118,796
118,796

47
24,603

80,902

2,500
131,710

Operating Expenses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contracted services
Supplies
Equipment
Communication
Occupancy
Travel
Printing
Other
Administration
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

32,054
13,817
34,043
1,355
5,926
5,880
1,051
1,153
95,279

10,931
3,466
1,333
38
18
72
2,347
81
234
18,520

109,964
40,455
47,496
239
2,296
10,229
10,816
1,076
2,810
225,381

66,823
31,620
25,365
3,074
180
3,830
38,617
8,113
1,657
2,247
181,526

Operating Income (Loss)

23,517

6,083

(144,479)

(49,816)

-

-

23,517

6,083

-

-

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers In
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

$

23,517
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$

6,083

-

-

(144,479)

(49,816)

$ (144,479)

$

(49,816)

01-650
School Climate
Improvement
Grant

01-616
PBIS
$

-

$

$

-

$

505,087

2,991
2,991

3,582
2,440
191
1,571
553
5
95
8,437

1,857
1,001
6
127
2,991

575,026
(28,630)
181,650
728,046

1,510,678
1,081,248
297,593
28,207
98,210
31,003
278,986
211,558
11,365
54,649
(795,223)
181,650
2,989,924

-

(728,046)

(962,681)

-

(3,178)
(3,178)

365
(3,178)
(2,813)

-

(731,224)

(965,494)

(1,067)
(1,067)

$

-

-

Total

7,370
7,370

(1,067)

$

-

Adjustment
to
Accrual

$ (731,224)

9,372
151,601
1,097,575
175,426
35,849
52,333
2,027,243

668,967
$ (296,527)
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Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Risk Management Cost Centers
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Operating Revenues
Insurance premiums
Administrative fees
Total Operating Revenues

09-200
Health
Insurance School Pool

09-220
Health
Insurance Government Pool

$ 30,830,325
30,830,325

$ 32,361,695
32,361,695

414,525
40,328
7,546,344
23,283,981
404,740
31,689,918

17,538
348,020
6,977,609
25,384,086
1,192,589
184,915
34,104,757

Operating Expenses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Contracted services
Supplies
Communication
Occupancy
Travel
Printing
Administration
Wellness activities
Insurance premiums and administrative fees
Insurance claims
Insurance settlements
Network access fees
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

(859,593)

Nonoperating Revenues
Interest income

12,043

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

(847,550)

Transfers Out
Change in Net Position

$

(847,550)

60

09-201
Health
Insurance Operating
$

1,911,757
1,911,757

$ 63,192,020
1,911,757
65,103,777

74,893
44,922
313,721
260
1,009
7,427
16,040
2,280
795,223
1,255,775

74,893
44,922
745,784
260
1,009
7,427
16,040
2,280
795,223
388,348
14,523,953
48,668,067
1,597,329
184,915
67,050,450

(1,743,062)

655,982

(4,689)

12,985

(1,747,751)

668,967

$ (1,747,751)

(668,967)
$

Total

-

(1,946,673)

20,339
(1,926,334)
(668,967)
$ (2,595,301)

Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Balance
July 1, 2016
Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Due from other districts

Additions

Deletions

Balance
June 30, 2017

$

79,362
3,891

$

486,778
373,720

$

558,287
313,254

$

7,853
64,357

$

83,253

$

860,498

$

871,541

$

72,210

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other districts

$

18,737
64,516

$

516,176
344,322

$

534,891
336,650

$

22
72,188

Total Liabilities

$

83,253

$

860,498

$

871,541

$

72,210

Total Assets
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Fiscal Compliance Report - 6/30/2017
District: REGION 10 - SOUTHEAST EC (921-83)
Audit

UFARS

Audit UFARS

01 GENERAL FUND
Total Revenue
Total Expenditures
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
Balance
Restricted / Reserved:
4.03 Staff Development
4.06 Health and Safety
4.07 Capital Projects Levy
4.08 Cooperative Revenue
4.13 Project Funded by COP
4.14 Operating Debt
4.16 Levy Reduction
4.17 Taconite Building Maint
4.24 Operating Capital
4.26 $25 Taconite
4.27 Disabled Accessibility
4.28 Learning & Development
4.34 Area Learning Center
4.35 Contracted Alt. Programs
4.36 State Approved Alt.
Program
4.38 Gifted & Talented
4.40 Teacher Development and
Evaluation
4.41 Basic Skills Programs
4.45 Career Tech Programs
4.48 Achievement and
Integration
4.49 Safe School Crime - Crime
Levy
4.50 Pre-Kindergarten
4.51 QZAB Payments
4.52 OPEB Liab Not In Trust
4.53 Unfunded Sev & Retiremt
Levy
4.67 LTFM
4.72 Medical Assistance
Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance
Committed:
4.18 Committed for Separation
4.61 Committed Fund Balance
Assigned:
4.62 Assigned Fund Balance
Unassigned:
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance

UFARS

Audit UFARS

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

06 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
$2,027,608 $2,027,604 $4
$2,421,761 $2,421,756 $5
$0

$0

$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$3,738,567 $3,738,568 ($1)

02 FOOD SERVICES
Total Revenue

Audit

$0

$0

$0

$0
Total Revenue
$0
Total Expenditures
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
$0
Balance
Restricted / Reserved:
$0
4.07 Capital Projects Levy
4.13 Project Funded by COP $0
$0
4.67 LTFM
Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance $0
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance $0

07 DEBT SERVICE
$0
Total Revenue
$0
Total Expenditures
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
$0
Balance
Restricted / Reserved:
$0
4.25 Bond Refundings
$0
4.51 QZAB Payments
Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance $0
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance $0

08 TRUST
$0
Total Revenue
$0
Total Expenditures
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance $0
(Net Assets)

20 INTERNAL SERVICE
$66,276,505 $66,276,497 $8
Total Revenue
$68,182,556 $68,182,551 $5
Total Expenditures
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance $12,863,760 $12,863,758 $2
(Net Assets)

25 OPEB REVOCABLE TRUST
$0
Total Revenue
$0
Total Expenditures
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance $0
(Net Assets)

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

45 OPEB IRREVOCABLE TRUST
$0
Total Revenue
$0
Total Expenditures
4.22 Unassigned Fund Balance $0
(Net Assets)
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Total Expenditures
$0
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
$0
Balance
Restricted / Reserved:
$0
4.52 OPEB Liab Not In Trust
Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance $0
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balancee $0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

04 COMMUNITY
SERVICE
Total Revenue
Total Expenditures
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
Balance
Restricted / Reserved:
4.26 $25 Taconite
4.31 Community Education
4.32 E.C.F.E
4.40 Teacher Development and
Evaluation
4.44 School Readiness
4.47 Adult Basic Education
4.52 OPEB Liab Not In Trust
Restricted:
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

47 OPEB DEBT SERVICE
$0
Total Revenue
$0
Total Expenditures
Non Spendable:
4.60 Non Spendable Fund
$0
Balance
Restricted:
$0
4.25 Bond Refundings
4.64 Restricted Fund Balance $0
Unassigned:
4.63 Unassigned Fund Balance $0
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$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0
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SINGLE AUDIT AND OTHER
REQUIRED REPORTS
SOUTHEAST SERVICE COOPERATIVE
ROCHESTER, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Board of Directors
Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of each major enterprise fund of the Southeast Service Cooperative,
Rochester, Minnesota, (the Cooperative) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13, 2017.
The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for School Districts, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to
Minnesota. Statute § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and
investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and uniform
financial accounting and reporting standards for school districts. Our study considered all of the listed categories.
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Cooperative failed to comply
with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for School Districts. However, our audit was not
directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Cooperative’s noncompliance with the above
referenced provisions.
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Mankato, Minnesota
November 13, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of each major enterprise fund of the Southeast Service Cooperative,
Rochester, Minnesota, (the Cooperative), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Cooperative’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 13, 2017.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Cooperative's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Cooperative’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cooperative’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control or on compliance.
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Cooperative’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Mankato, Minnesota
November 13, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Southeast Service Cooperative
Rochester, Minnesota
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southeast Service Cooperative, Rochester, Minnesota’s (the Cooperative) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the Cooperative’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The Cooperative’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal
awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Cooperative’s major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Cooperative’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Cooperative’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Cooperative complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the Cooperative is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the Cooperative’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Mankato, Minnesota
November 13, 2017
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Southeast Service Cooperative
Independent School District No. 921
Rochester, Minnesota
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal
Awarding
Agency
U.S. Department
of Education

Pass - through
Entity
Minnesota
Department of
Education

Federal
Domestic
Assistance
Number

Program
Name
Title 1 Grants to
Local Educational
Agencies (Part A)

84.010
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Amount
Expended
Expended directly

$

1,097,575

Southeast Service Cooperative
Rochester, Minnesota
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note 1: Basis of Presentation
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards programs of
the Southeast Service Cooperative, Rochester, Minnesota (the Cooperative). The Cooperative's reporting entity is defined
in Note 1A to the Cooperative's financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). All federal awards received directly from Federal
agencies as well as Federal awards passed through other government agencies are included on the schedule.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for Expenditures
Expenditures reported on this schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-ProfitOrganizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3: Pass-Through Entity Identifying Numbers
Pass-through entity identifying numbers, if any, are presented where available.

Note 4: Subrecipients
No federal expenditures presented in this schedule were provided to subrecipients.

Note 5: Indirect Cost Rate
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Cooperative did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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Southeast Service Cooperative
Rochester, Minnesota
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified
No
None reported
No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?

No
None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
2CFR section 200.516(a)?

Unmodified

Identification of Major Programs/Projects

CFDA No.

Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies (Part A)

No

84.010

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 750,000
Yes

Section II - Financial Statement Findings
None
Section III - Major Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
There are no significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, or instances of noncompliance including
questioned costs that are required to be reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance.
Other Issues
A Corrective Action Plan is not required because there were no findings required to be reported under the
Federal Single Audit Act.
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